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Listed below are the buildings within the district which are of special

interest:

1.

NATHANIEL PLUMMER HOUSE - ¢.1800-1810 - The Nathaniel Plummer
House is a fine central chimnied, one and a half storied Maine
House of the early 19th century. Built for Plummer between
about 1800 and 1810, the house has a triple arch beneath its
large center chimmney, which has three fireplaces entering

from the first floor. The front hall features a circular
staircase.

J.A. JEWETT GRAIN STORE - ¢.1907-08 - The Jewett Grain Store

is a straightforward two and a half story frame structure with
a gable roof. Although built for J.A. Jewett in the early 20th
century, its simplicity of design has its origin in 18th and
19th century rural Maine architecture. In addition to selling
grain here, Jewett used the building for a grain and hardware
warehouse.

CAPTAIN CLARK HOUSE - c¢.1787 - A Captain Clark had this handsome
two and a half story double chimnied house built for himself
about 1787. Jeremiah Carleton purchased the house in 1826 and
maintained a tavern there. It is believed that he placed the
one and a half story addition on the back of the house. Later
in the 19th century, this became the home of J.A. Jewett. The
dwelling has become known as ''The.Spring:House'" because a spring
flows directly from the ledge beneath the floor in the corner of
of the kitchen. Other interesting features include early hard-
ware and a back door which opens out from the second story be-
cause of the terrain.

J.A. JEWETT GENERAL STORE - 1884 - Like the Jewett Grain Store,
the Jewett General Store is a two and a half story frame struc-
ture of straightforward Maine design. The building is in a good
state of preservation with its original exterior store front and
second floor dance hall intact.

J.A. JEWZTT STABLE - 1881 - J. A. Jewett's stable stands adjacent
to his general store. Erected in 1881, the stable is a large omne
and a half story frame building designed in a forthright manner.
In addition to providing stabling for horses, Jewett used this
structure as a warehouse for his store.

REV. JEREMIAH JEWETT HOUSE - Early 19th century - Rev. Jewett's
house is an imposing country homestead of the early 19th century.
It exhibits the two and a half story double chimnied form which
was most popular in Maine from the mid to the late 18th century.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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7. DESCRIPTION

6. REV. JEREMIAH JEWETT HOUSE CONT.
Connected to the house at the right is a long story and a half
ell which has three arched doorways outlined in a simple country
Federal manner. The arches of these entrances are surrounded
with a flat band of molding which is accented at the top by a
simple keystone. Adjacent to the ell is a two story shed struc-
ture. Rev. Jewett (1780-1860) was the minister for Head Tide
during the first half of the 19th century, and his home was
known as the Parsonage. The interior of its parlor has fine
decorative paneling and moldings.Rev. Jewett was instrumental
in the building of the church on the hill, and his will provided
a large bequest for its maintenance.

7. WARD LEWIS HOUSE - c. 1800 - The Ward Lewis House is a dwelling
in the salt box form, of which few examples now survive in Maine.
The house possesses a pleasing directness of design. The facade
is {highted) by an entrance with Fedefal style pilasters and hori-
zontal pediment as well as Greek Bévival moldings outlining the
the door and sidelights.

8. ROBINSON HOUSE - ¢.1835 - Built about 1835, the Robinson House
was owned by Edward Robinson and was in 1869 the birthplace of
his son, Edwin Arlington Robinson, a major late 19th -early 20th
century American poet. This two story hipped roof house is late
Federal style in form but displays a broad Greek Revival doorway.

9. TURNER HOUSE - ¢.1820 - Little is known about this story and a
half, central chimney house, which was probably built by the
Turner family circa 1820. In form the house is typical of many
constructed in Maine during the early 19th century. The Turner
House exhibits a simple Federal style doorway and restrained
period window trim. The left side porch is a later addition.

10. TIBBETT HOUSE - Later 18th-early 19th century - This low posted
story and a half house probably dates from the late 18th or early
19th century. The facade arrangement is assymetrical with two
windows at the left of a simple doorway and one at the right.
A.J. Tibbett owned a mill on the river about 1820 and is believed
to have occupied the house at that time. A large central chimney
has been replaced by a later narrow one which is located at the
left of the center of the house.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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DESCRIPTION

GLIDDEN HOUSE - Mid-19th century - The Glidden House is a sub-
stantial mid-19th century Greek Revival farmhouse which stands
two and a half stories in height. The Glidden family apparently
first owned this property in the 18th century, and one section
of the house may date from an earlier period.

SCHOOL HOUSE - ¢.1860 - The school House was built about 1860
to replace the community's first school, which burned in 1859.
The school house is a classic example of the many one and a
half story, one room school houses which dotted the rural Maine
landscape in the 19th century. In recent years, this school
has been successfully adapted for a residence.

HEAD TIDE CHURCH - 1838 - Located on a hill overlooking the village,
the Head Tide Church is a handsome rural Maine house of worship
which exhibits a combination of Federal style, Greek Revival, and
Gothic Bevival elements in its design. The facade displays the
outliné of a Grecian temple front with its six pilasters and
strongly accented triangular pediment. However, the Federal fan
motif appears above the two facade windows as well as in the cen-
ter of the pediment. The influence of the Gothic Revival is felt
in the two pointed arch windows on either side of the church and

in the simple pinnacle at the top of each corner of the belfry.

The interior features a painted trompe 1'oeil window with draperies
behind the pulpit.

The Head Tide Church was established by members of the congregation
of the 1789 Alna Meeting House who wanted a church closer to their
homes at Head Tide. The building was dedicated on November 21, 1838.
Parish scribe E. Merrill's entry for that date reports, "The New
Meeting House near the Head of the Tide was this date dedicated to
the service of God... The day was fine, the audience numerous and
attentive, and the occasion of great interest."

In April of 1839 a town agreement was made to hold worship at the
Head Tide Church 3/4 of the time and 1/4 at the older Meeting House.
After 1868 the new building was used most of the time. Although
prosperous at first, it fell into decline. 1In 1913 it was reclaimed,
rededicated, and incorporated into the Congregational Christian Con-
ference. However, after 1922 public interest and support again
lapsed, and the church deteriorated once more. In 1940 the Committee
for the Restoration and Preservation of the 01ld Head Tide Church

was created to care for the structure. For almost thirty-five years,
this dedicated organization has worked diligently to maintain the

(See Continuation Sheet)
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church as a landmark and as a meeting place in which to have an
annual address by a distinguished speaker. The group's greatest
challenge came on July 9, 1962, when the steeple was struck by
lightning, which destroyed the belfry with its Revere bell and
damaged part of the front of the building. Within a year the
Committee had restored the church to its original appearance,
and thus it remains today.

PLUMMER HOUSE - Late 18th century, c¢.1805 - This house was built

in the late 18th century by David Plummer. An early 19th century
owner, Squire Josiah Stebbins, greatly enlarged the structure about
1805 to its present appearance of a massive frame two story Federal
style house with a hipped roof and double chimney arrangement.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The villagg of Head Tide began to develop as a mill community
in the mid-18¢h century because of its excellent location on the Sheeps-
cot River. From before the Revolution through the first half of the
20th centuyy, the Riyef's water power was harnessed for saw mills,
grist mills, a stay&/mill, a shinglé mill, a planing mill, a cardlng
mill, and a fullirg mill. Although the last of these various mills
burned in 1949, “the surviving homes and buildings of this once active
commercial center form one of the most picturesque and well-preserved
historic districts in Maine.

Head Tide and the surrounding region were settled as the result
of a decision by the Boston based Plymouth Company to develop their
holdings in the Kennebec River valley. Comprised of such prominent
Boston families as:the.Bowdoins,.Vassals, Hancocks, Hallowells and
Gardiners, the Plymouth Company decided in the mid-18th century to
encourage settlement on its Maine lands to keep out the French, to
protect fur trapping, and to secure timber for the mast trade.

Dr. Silvester Gardirder was the most diligent of the Company's
proprietors in securing settlers on the Kennebec River, spending much
of his time and money in this effort. He furnished a sloop at his
expense and brought settlers to this territory.

To show their appreciation of Dr. Gardiner's work, his fellow
proprietors presented him with two tracts of land between 17 and
1761. Located on the Sheepscot River, this acreage included the
present village of Head Tide. Within a year after acquiring title
to these lands, Dr. Gardiner began selling them to settlers. His
first sale at Head Tide was in 1762 to David Nelggn, who purchased
150 acres for 60 pounds. This included the dam site and land upon
which mills were later erected.

Concurrent with the development of the Kennebec River was the
creating of Lincoln County in 1760. Head Tide was included within
the town of Newcastle when this new county was formed. By 1794, so
many mills had been built on the upper SheepscotRiver that a town
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

called New Milford was set aside from Newcastle. The town, which in-
cluded Head Tide, derived its name from the many mills which had been
established on the river and its tributaries. 1In 1811 the name was
changed to Alna, the Indian name for alders.

By the early 19th century, the village of Head Tide possessed the
major concentration of mills in Alna. At that time six water wheels
were powered by the dam at Head Tide, two for saw mills, two for grist
mills, one for a planing mill and one for a cloth finishing mill. Terraces
were cut into the side of the hill behind the dam for the purpose of drying
cloth after it was dyed.

Head Tide's growing influence in Alna became apparent in the 1830's
when three-fourths of the town's church services were transfered to the
new Head Tide Church completed in 1838, After 1868 most of the town's
services were held there. That year Walter Wells gave the following
description of the village in his Water Power of Maine:

Head-of-Tide Falls about five miles above Sheepscot Falls, wooden
dam, head and fall about ten feet; can be increased to thirteen feet.
Grist mill, stave, and shingle mill. Large building adjoining, formerly
used as a grist mill and carding mill, now as a shingle mill. Would
make an excellent carriage shop or factory in connection with still another
building attached, formerly used as a fulling and cloth dressing mill.

However, by the late 19th century, the rural economy which had
supported Head Tide for almost a century and a half began to change.
When a freshet in 1896 destroyed the mills on the north side of the
river, they were not rebuilt. In 1924 a fire leveled the mills on the
river's south bank. Of these, only one grist mill was replaced, and this
was destroyed by fire twenty-five years later.

Today the tangible remains of Head Tide's more than two centuries
of history are its fourteen fine 18th and 19th century homes and buildings
as well as its beautiful natural setting. The structures are characteris-
tic of rural Maine architecture in the forthright simplicity of their
design. With the exception of the now-vanished mills, these buildings
are representative of the basic elements of an” old Maine village: dwellings
ranging from a humble Cape to the minister's parsonage, a store, a stable,
a school, and a church. The man-made and natural assets of Head Tide
have been fully appreciated by current residents, who have worked indivi-
dually and as a group to maintain the special character of their community.
The results have been the preservation of one of the most authentic village
settings to survive from Maine's past.
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District Delineation

5. The country village of Head Tide is located on State

route 194 one mile northeast of the town of Alna, The

community is located on both sides ofthe Sheepscot River

at a junction where a road crosses the river and joins

194 which runs along the eastern bank. The generously

spaced houses are agreeably sited to take advantage of

the natural beauty of the rolling landscape and the river,

There are no modern buildings or commercial structures.

Along the roads,which are asphalt, the district
extends from the junction ,08 miles north and .09 south
on rt., 194 and .16 miles across the river to a junction
with state rt. 218, The district comprises an area 200
yards either side of these roads except that on the
south side of the road on the western side of the river
it is deepened to 500 yards to include the fine meeting-
house structure.

The district is delineated in this fashion to include
all structures and sites of historic and architectural

merit,
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